
Drug Utilization Review Board
Meeting Minutes

Thursday, January 11, 2024
7:15 a.m. to 8:30 a.m.

Google Meet

Board Members Present:
Judith Turner, DVM, PharmD
Neal Catalano, PharmD
Michelle Hoffman, MD
Sharon Weinstein, MD

James Keddington, DDS
Jennifer Brinton, MD
Eric Cannon, PharmD, FAMCP, Board
Chair

Board Members Excused:
Susan Siegfried, MD
Katherine Smith, PharmD
Colby Hancock, PharmD

Dept. of Health/Div. of Health Care Financing Staff Present:
Bryan Larson, PharmD, P&T Manager
Lisa Angelos, PharmD, BCSCP, CAPP
Luis Moreno, PharmD, CDCES
Ngan Huynh, PharmD, DURB Manager

Stephanie Byrne, PharmD
Yoon Kim-Butterfield, MD, Medical
Director, Interim Pharmacy Director
Craig Hummel, MD

University of Utah Drug Regimen Review Center Staff Presenter:
Monet Luloh, PharmD

Other Individuals Present:
Chad Duncan, Vertex
Miles Rooney, CHC, Optum
Matthew Call, University of Utah
Lauren Heath, Medicaid DRRC
Artia Solutions Representative

Heidi Goodrich, Molina Healthcare
Jeff White, Sumitomo Pharma
Joseph Bennett
Robert Pearce, Karuna Therapeutics



Drug Utilization Review Board
Meeting Minutes

Meeting conducted by: Ngan Huynh and Eric Cannon

1. Welcome: Ngan Huynh opened the meeting and announced a quorum.
2. Judith Turner motioned to approve the December 2023 DUR minutes.

Michelle Hoffman seconded the motion. Unanimous approval.
3. Housekeeping:

● Legislative Session starting this week (Yoon Kim-Butterfield, MD)
● Full Carve Back to FFS Study results are expected in the next few weeks

(Yoon Kim-Butterfield, MD)
4. P&T Committee Update: No update
5. Topic:

a. Donislecel-jujn (Lantidra) for Type 1 Diabetes Mellitus
presented by Monet Luloh

b. Public Comment: None
c. Board Discussion:
● Eric Cannon asked for the definition of hypoglycemia unawareness.

Monet Luloh responded that the Lantidra drug studies listed the
following definition as their criteria for hypoglycemia unawareness: a
self-reported lack of awareness of blood glucose symptoms when
blood glucose falls below 54mg/dL.

● Neal Catalano asked about the malignancy risk stated in the
presentation; specifically what type of malignancies were associated
with Lantidra use? Sharon Weinstein mentioned that she noticed that
as well and asked to review the slide.

● Monet Luloh said she would research the associated malignancies and
report back.

● Neal Catalano thanked Monet Luloh for the presentation.
● Monet Luloh responded via meeting chat: “To answer the previous

question regarding the malignancies in the donislecel clinical trials
(UIH-001 and UIH-002), it is reported that malignancies included 12
skin cancers, 1 post-transplant lymphoproliferative disease, 1 breast
cancer, and 1 thyroid cancer.”

● Eric Cannon asked if there were other questions. He mentioned the
drug durability is interesting and mentioned the differences seen
between studies. He further queried, if the treatment is used, does



Drug Utilization Review Board
Meeting Minutes

that preclude patients from future transplant options? Monet Luloh
said the exclusion criteria in both studies did not allow for previous
renal transplants.

● Eric Cannon asked if there is a proposed prior authorization for the
board to review. Ngan Huynh confirmed a prior authorization draft
was prepared for review.

● Eric Cannon asked if the prior authorization had been reviewed by
community specialists and leaders. Ngan Huynh responded that the
prior authorization has been reviewed by the Managed Care Entity
partners and their suggestions are included in the prior authorization
draft.

d. Lantidra Prior Authorization: Ngan Huynh presented the Lantidra
prior authorization draft for board review.

● Eric Cannon posed a couple of questions on the Lantidra prior
authorization draft: Is there a timeframe on the expectation for
patients unable to achieve glucose control with an insulin pump and
monitoring? Ngan Huynh responded that the prescribing information
does not mention a timeframe and asked the board for their
suggested time frames. Eric Cannon suggested leaning on the
physicians in the group for that feedback but thinks an appropriate
time frame would be at least 6-12 months.

● Eric Cannon then asked about the three (3) infusion limit max if there



Drug Utilization Review Board
Meeting Minutes

is data to support reinfusion. Monet Luloh mentioned that in the drug
trials patients were able to receive up to three (3) infusions. Clinical
data is available to support reinfusion. Yoon Kim-Butterfield shared
that she has seen studies where patients with the second infusion had
better outcomes than patients with a single infusion.

● Monet Luloh then shared the percentages of study participants who
received one (1) infusion (37%), two (2) infusions (40%), and three (3)
infusions (24%).

● Sharon Weinstein commented on the prior authorization criteria
requiring care to be provided by an endocrinologist with a specialty in
islet cell transplantation, and assumes that along with that criterion,
the timeframe for failure would likely be 12 months; we may not want
to specify a specific timeframe on the prior authorization form if the
patient is being seen by a specialist who is qualified to make that
determination.

● Sharon Weinstein mentioned in the exclusion criteria, it is her
understanding patients should not have received any transplantation
other than an islet cell transplant. She then asked if we needed to
modify that criterion. Ngan Huynh responded that the prescribing
information only specifically calls out renal transplant as an exclusion.

● Eric Cannon asked if there is a callout in the prescribing information
for concomitant immunosuppressive therapy. Ngan Huynh responded
that the prescribing information does mention that patients must be
able to receive concurrent immunosuppression therapy.

● Eric Cannon responded to Sharon Weinstein’s comment regarding the
timeframe required for treatment failure and said her suggestion to
allow the treating specialist to determine that timeframe seems
appropriate.

● Eric Cannon then asked about the criteria suggesting that the patient
is unable to achieve target HbA1c despite intensive diabetes
management, which assumes the patient is capable of participating in
intensive diabetes management. Judith Turner responded that if the
member is not capable of participating in intensive diabetes
management using a CGM pump, etc. then it calls into question if the
patient can maintain the fairly intensive management of the
immunosuppressive therapy post-transplant.



Drug Utilization Review Board
Meeting Minutes

● Judith Turner then asked if a history of malignancy is a
contraindication. Ngan Huynh responded; that malignancy is not a
listed contraindication.

● Jennifer Brinton mentioned there may be a demographic of patients
who may not be able to manage their regimen alone but should still be
considered for the treatment if care is managed by others.

● Eric Cannon asked if there were any specific recommended changes.
There were no suggestions.

● Eric Cannon moved that we accept the criteria as proposed and asked
that the group hear back on utilization, approvals, and denials since
this is a new treatment. Ngan Huynh agreed to update the board if
there are any requests as well as outcomes to be shared in 6-12
months based on utilization.

e. Board Action: Sharon Weinstein proposed to approve the Lantidra
prior authorization form as presented. Neal Catalano seconded.
Unanimous approval.

6. Topic:
a. Vyjuvek (beremagene geperpavec-svdt) Presented by Luis Moreno
b. Luis Moreno presented the updated changes to the prior

authorization form based upon the ACO’s feedback since the
December 2023 DURB Meeting.



Drug Utilization Review Board
Meeting Minutes

c. Public Comment: None
d. Board Discussion:

● Eric Cannon asked for any questions or comments on the
Vyjuvek prior authorization updated criteria. No comments.

e. Board Action:
● Eric Cannon asked if the board approved the proposed Vyjuvek

prior authorization form as presented.
● Judith Turner moved to approve. James Keddington and Sharon

Weinstein seconded. Unanimous approval.
7. Topic: Opioids and/or Opioid-Benzodiazepine Combination Prior

Authorization Updates presented by Ngan Huynh



Drug Utilization Review Board
Meeting Minutes

a. Public Comment: None
b. Board Discussion:

● Eric Cannon asked for any questions or comments on the
Opioid and/or Opioid-Benzodiazepines Combination Prior
Authorization updated criteria. He commented that the updates
seem appropriate.

● Sharon Weinstein asked for clarification on patients utilizing
opioids and MAT. Ngan Huynh responded that the pharmacy
system is programmed to reject claims when a patient is on
MAT therapy and there is a subsequent request for opioids for
greater than 7-day supply. However, the system does allow



Drug Utilization Review Board
Meeting Minutes

claim adjudication for patients currently taking opioids who
begin MAT therapy.

● Eric Cannon asked if there were any other comments. No
comments.

c. Board Action:
● Eric Cannon moved to approve the proposed Opioid and/or

Opioid-Benzodiazepines Combination prior authorization form
as presented. Judith Turner and Sharon Weinstein seconded.
Unanimous approval.

● Sharon Weinstein asked that the Opioid and/or
Opioid-Benzodiazepines Combination prior authorization be
emailed to the board.

● Ngan Huynh agreed to email the approved prior authorization
form.

8. Meeting Chat Transcript:
00:46:25.150,00:46:28.150
Monet Luloh (UofU CoP, DRRC): To answer the previous question regarding types of
malignancies in the donislecel clinical trials (UIH-001 and UIH-002), it is reported that
that malignancies included 12 skin cancers, 1 post-transplant lymphorproliferative
disease, 1 breast cancer, and 1 thyroid cancer.
00:46:47.446,00:46:50.446
Eric Cannon: thank you!
00:47:10.030,00:47:13.030
Neal Catalano: Thank you Monet!
00:47:18.657,00:47:21.657
Sharon M Weinstein MD: thanks!
00:55:34.565,00:55:37.565
Sharon M Weinstein MD: thank you all

9. The next meeting is scheduled for February 8, 2024, Sublocade Adherence
Retrospective Review

10. Neal Catalano motioned to adjourn the meeting. Sharon Weinstein
seconded the motion. Unanimous approval.

Audio recordings of DUR meetings are available online at:
https://medicaid.utah.gov/pharmacy/drug-utilization-review-board?p=DUR%20B
oard%20Audio%20Recordings/

https://medicaid.utah.gov/pharmacy/drug-utilization-review-board?p=DUR%20Board%20Audio%20Recordings/
https://medicaid.utah.gov/pharmacy/drug-utilization-review-board?p=DUR%20Board%20Audio%20Recordings/

